
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Audit and Governance Committee 

Date: Monday, 27th September, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Hollingworth (Room 108ABC), First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Minutes  3 - 5 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting held 9th August 2021.  
 
3   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
4   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
5   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press  

 

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 
6   External Audit Update  

 

 To consider any updates from the Council’s External Auditor.  
 
7   Internal Audit Quarter One Report 2021/22  6 - 13 

Public Document Pack



 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Corporate / Director of Resources. 

 

 
8   Counter Fraud Team Quarter One Report 2020/21  14 - 16 

 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Corporate / Director of Resources. 

 

 
9   Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2021/22  17 - 34 

 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Corporate / Director of Resources. 

 

 
10   Audit and Governance work programme  35 - 37 

 To consider a report of the Committee and Constitutional Services 
Manager 

 

 

Audit and Governance Committee Members 
Councillor Ali Ahmed Craig Ainsworth 
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Allen Brett 
Miranda Carruthers-Watt Councillor James Gartside 
Councillor Aftab Hussain Councillor Donna Martin E 
Councillor Philip Massey Jaime Sanderson 
Councillor Donna Williams Councillor Sameena Zaheer 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James 
01706 924715 



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Monday 9th August 2021 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Zaheer (Chair); Councillors Ali, Brett, Gartside, Aftab 
Hussain, Martin, Philip Massey and Donna Williams 
 
OFFICERS:  J. Murphy (Chief Finance Officer/Section 151 Officer), A. Ibrahim 
(Monitoring Officer), S. Knowles, T. Brown, R. Bennett, Y. Dunease and A. 
James (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  M. Carruthers-Watt (Independent Person), J. 
Sanderson (Independent Member), K. Murray (Mazars) 
 

44 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ali Ahmed and C. 
Ainsworth (Independent Person). 
 

45 MINUTES 
RESOLVED 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held 
on 28th June 2021 be approved as a correct record. 
 

46 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

47 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

48 EXTERNAL AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT 
Consideration was given to a report of the Council’s External Auditor, which 
highlighted the key matters arising from their audit of Rochdale Borough 
Council's financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021. The 
External Auditors were also required to consider other information published 
together with the audited financial statements and whether it was consistent 
with the financial statements and in line with required guidance and whether 
the Council had made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 
Members were reminded that under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit 
Practice the External Auditors were required to report whether, in their 
opinion, the Council's financial statements presented a true and fair view of 
the financial position and expenditure and income for the year and whether 
the statements had been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. 
 
The Committee noted that the Council had been given an unqualified report 
from the External Auditor and thanked all the staff involved in assisting with 
the Completion Report. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
A further report would be submitted to the Committee to provide a further 
update in relation to some issues that had arisen as part of the process once 
they had been fully resolved. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Completion Report from External Audit be noted. 
 

49 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the Annual 
Governance Statement.  The Committee were informed that the Council was 
required under Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to 
produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to accompany the Annual 
Statement of Accounts which must be signed by the Leader of the Council, 
Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) and the 
Monitoring Officer. 
  
The purpose of the AGS process was to provide a continuous review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control and risk management systems 
so as to give assurance on their effectiveness and/or to produce a 
management action plan to address identified weaknesses in either process. 
  
The Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31st March 2021 was 
submitted for approval, together with the annual audit opinion from the Chief 
Internal Auditor, the external review and inspection reports and an action plan 
to address issues raised and ensures that there is continuous improvement in 
the governance of the Authority. 
  
RESOLVED 
That the Annual Governance Statement be approved. 
 

50 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Finance Officer that sought 
approval of the Council’s audited statement of accounts for 2020/21. 
  
The submission of the Council’s Statement of Accounts was required for issue 
by the 30th September 2021 as a statutory requirement and therefore no 
alternatives were available. 
  
Prior to audit completion, the accounts and supporting documents had been 
available for inspection by any person interested between 17th June 2021 and 
19th July 2021.  From the 7th June 2021, the District Auditor has been 
available to receive questions and objections relating to the accounts from 
local electors. 
  
As a consequence of the audit a small number of changes to the statement of 
accounts had been made which have been agreed with the External Auditors 
and detailed in Appendix 1 of the submitted report. The management 

Page 4



representation letter and statement of accounts were detailed at Appendix 2 
and 3 of the submitted report. 
 
In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations it is intended that the 
audited accounts will be published on the Council’s website by 30th 
September 2021.  
  
RESOLVED 
That the audited statement of accounts for 2020/21 and the management 
representation letter be approved. 
 

51 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit advising that, 
in order to comply with best professional practice, the Audit and Governance 
Committee should complete an annual report to the Council on the work 
undertaken by the Committee during the previous year. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Annual Audit and Governance Committee report be submitted to the 
next meeting of Council. 
 

Page 5



Page 1 of 8 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 

 

Date of Meeting 27th September 2021 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Resources 

Report Author Shaun Knowles 

 Public/Private Document Public 

 

Internal Audit Quarter One Report 2021/22 

 

Executive Summary 

1.01 This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the first 
quarter of financial year 2021/22. 

1.02 A substantial or adequate assurance opinion was given for all audits 
completed during the period, with the exception of one audit, Corporate 
Electronic Records Management, which was assigned a ‘limited’ assurance 
opinion (see 6.02 for further details). 

1.03 26% of the agreed Audit Plan which is ahead of expectation (24%). 

Recommendation 

2.01 That the report be reviewed and noted. 

Reason for Recommendation 

3.01 This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee to scrutinise 
Internal Audit coverage during the first quarter of financial year 2021/22.  

Key Points for Consideration 

4.00 Risk Based Audit Approach 

4.01 Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal 
control environment, risk management and governance processes for the 
Council as a whole.  

4.02 A risk based approach is taken during each audit, incorporating operational 
and management controls, as well as any wider business risks. This allows an 
opinion to be expressed both on risk identification and level of exposure, as 
well as the adequacy of systems in place to manage those risks. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 8 

4.03 Each Internal Audit report gives a clear audit assurance opinion on the 
effectiveness of risk management in the area under review. These assurance 
opinion ratings are detailed below: 

 Assurance 
Opinion Explanation 

 Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control 
systems in operation are in need of significant improvement. 

 Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, 
opportunities exist to improve the management of some risks. 

 Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks 
effectively. 

5.00 Planned Work Completed During Quarter One 

5.01 Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed during 
quarter one. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with a 
specific focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority. 

6.00 Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow-Up Audits 

6.01 One audit report was issued with ‘Limited’ assurance during the first quarter. 

6.02 Corporate Electronic Records Management 

 The Corporate Electronic Records Management audit scope was to review the 
arrangements for the keeping, management and destruction of electronic 
records in folders on the IT network. This included: 

 Although some pockets of good practice are in place regarding the 
management of electronic records, 4 high and 6 medium recommendations 
were made highlighting opportunities to improve. The high rated 
recommendations relate to: 

  The Records Management Policy be reviewed and update 
 A consistent corporate approach; 
 A review / controlled purge of network folders; and 
 The Corporate Retention Schedule be reviewed and updated 

 A working group has been established to drive the review of records 
management forward and Internal Audit are actively involved ensuring that 
progress is made. 

6.03 All ‘Limited’ Assurance audit reports are discussed at a Joint Leadership 
Team meeting, with the relevant Service Director invited to give an update on 
key findings and related recommendations. 

6.04 Progress against the action plan is monitored through Rochdale BCs 
Governance Board with regular updates given on progress of agreed 
recommendations. 

Page 7



Page 3 of 8 

6.05 Internal Audit will continue to monitor and challenge progress and will ensure 
that members are updated accordingly. 

7.00 Draft Reports 

 Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations are received within 28 days of the issue date.  

Internal Audit follows an agreed escalation process with management so as to 
ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a timely manner.  

No draft reports had responses outstanding beyond the agreed period. 
8.00 Audit Recommendations 

8.01 The Internal Audit follow up process, to provide assurance that agreed 
recommendations have been implemented on a timely basis, is detailed below 

8.02 ‘Limited Assurance’ reports are highlighted and are open to specific 
discussion and challenge by Members with senior officers from the relevant 
Service. Internal Audit will perform a formal follow up audit within an agreed 
timescale, with outcomes of these reviews reported back to the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

8.03 In terms of any ‘Adequate’ or ‘Substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions are scheduled to be followed up by Internal Audit to 
confirm completion to the agreed due dates.  

8.04 Any delays in implementation, along with related reasons, are reported to the 
Committee for further consideration. A revised completion date for each of 
these outstanding actions is agreed and monitored. 

9.00 Unplanned work 

9.01 COVID-19 Payments to Support Families on Free School Meals 
 Internal audit resource continues to be given to support the supply of food 

vouchers during school holidays to families with children who were entitled to 
free school meals. 

10.00 Fraud 

10.01 As part of Covid related assistance the government introduced a scheme to 
provide supermarket vouchers to families in need. Eligibility criteria means 
that these vouchers are only available to families where one or more of the 
children is entitled to free school meals. Rochdale Council is responsible for 
administering this scheme in the Borough and the vouchers are for use at any 
Aldi supermarket. In total, up to the end of June 2021, c£1.6m have been 
distributed. 

One particular batch of vouchers was delivered to the Council’s nominated 
printers for mail sort and delivery.  Upon processing these vouchers, it was 
noticed by staff from the nominated printer that there was a shortfall of £3480. 
The Head of Revenues and Benefits reported the loss of the vouchers to the 

Page 8



Page 4 of 8 

Chief Finance Officer, who in turn, asked Internal Audit to look into the matter. 
Replacement vouchers were also purchased. 

There are various factors that made it extremely difficult to determine what 
exactly happened to the missing vouchers. Firstly, due to the need for 
expediency in distributing the vouchers, no thorough validation checks were 
performed by Council staff when the boxes of vouchers were delivered to the 
Council buy Aldi. Secondly, there were a number of potential opportunities for 
the vouchers to be misappropriated during the end to end process. 

A thorough investigation was completed, and, although the cause of the loss 
could not be pinpointed, a number of recommendations have been made and 
implemented for the distribution of vouchers during the summer holidays. 

11.00 Internal Audit Performance Measures 

11.01 The table below shows actual performance as at 31 December 20 against 
Internal Audit targets for the first quarter, including the actuals for 2019/20. 

 
Performance Indicator 

Actual 
Year 
20/21 

Target 
Q1 

21/22 

Actual 
Q1 

21/22 
 Economy    
 1. Cost per Audit Day 

(excluding overheads) £237 £280 £277 

 Efficiency    
 2. Chargeable days per auditor (days) 203 181 187 
 3. Percentage of audit plan completed 

(96% for full year) 17% 24% 26% 

 4. Percentage of draft audit reports issued 
within 14 days of completion of the audit 100% 98% 100% 

 Effectiveness    
 5. Percentage of recommendations 

accepted 100% 98% 100% 

 6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in 
the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good) 

100% 98% 100% 

11.02 All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period.  

As at 30 June 2021 26%% of the Plan had been completed. 

12.00 Client Surveys 

12.01 3 client surveys were returned in the first quarter. All responses were recorded 
as very good. 

13.00 Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit 

Page 9



Page 5 of 8 

13.01 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of organisations 
in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In  Quarter One, this has generated income of £300 
and has included:  

 1 audits of School Fund Accounts for schools under Local Authority control 

13.02 Within the limitations of existing resources, Internal Audit continues to pursue 
opportunities to generate external income. 

14.00 Internal Audit Response to challenges arising from COVID-19 

14.01 In response to the challenges the Council continued to face in respect to 
Covid-19, Internal Audit (audit, risk, insurance and counter fraud) has both 
supported the Council, wherever needed, and adapted their working practices 
to include a mixture of both working in the office and at home. 

14.02 Internal Audit support given includes: 

 Supporting queries relating to the supply of Aldi supermarket vouchers for 
the most financially challenged families in the Borough  

 Verification of returns being made to Central Government 

10.03 Time has been included in the 2021/22 internal plan to allow for internal audit 
support in relation to the pandemic. This mainly relates to verification around 
grants and related returns to Central Government. The need for any further 
involvement is continually reviewed and should it adversely impact the 
completion of the 2021/22 plan, then the Head of Internal Audit will review the 
impact with both the Audit and Governance Committee and the Chief Finance 
Officer. 

14.04 The Head of Internal Audit will continue to ensure that any involvement in 
operational procedures will not impair Internal Audit’s professional 
independence in relation to any subsequent audit work focused on those 
processes or related controls. 

Costs and Budget Summary 

15.01 Not applicable. 

Risk and Policy Implications 

16.01 If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks identified in each Internal Audit reports. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised to help improve weaknesses identified during 
reviews and these risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed 
with management and summarised within this report. 

Page 10



Page 6 of 8 

Consultation 

17.01 The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

None  

  

For Further Information Contact: Shaun Knowles 

01706 925497 

shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 11

mailto:shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix A 

Planned audits completed in quarter one

Page 7 of 8 

Recommendation 
priorities Date of  

Audit Directorate Service Audit Area Scope of Audit Assurance 
Opinion 

H M L 

10-Jun-21 Corporate Corporate 

Corporate 
Electronic 
Records 
Management 

Review of the retention of records kept 
in electronic format L 4 6 0 

13-May-21 Neighbourhoods Places 
Commercial and 
Investment 
Properties  

Evaluate the processes and controls 
over the management of commercial 
and investment properties to ensure an 
appropriate return is being generated 
from the assets and properly accounted 
for. (Council) 

A 1 11 0 

17-May-21 Children's 
Services  Schools 

Holy Family RC 
& C of E 
College 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

A 1 8 5 

15-Apr-21 Resources Finance Discretionary 
Covid Grants  

Review of Discretionary Covid Grant 
process A 1 2 4 

25-May-21 Corporate Corporate Consultancy 

Review the use of consultant use 
across the Authority with a particular 
focus on longer term arrangements to 
ensure value for money is being 
achieved. Ensure compliance with 
agreed policies, Financial Regulations 
and HMRC regulations. 

A 1 1 2 

22-Jun-21 Children's 
Services  

Early 
Help 

Teacher 
Pension 

To provide assurance that the 
Service is operating effectively and 
meets objectives, in light of 
operational changes arising from 
Covid. 

A 1 1 1 

P
age 12



Appendix A 

Planned audits completed in quarter one

Page 8 of 8 

Recommendation 
priorities Date of  

Audit Directorate Service Audit Area Scope of Audit Assurance 
Opinion 

H M L 

25-May-21 Public Health 
& Wellbeing 

  Sexual Health 

Evaluate the processes and controls 
supporting cross charges for sexual 
health services where a person who 
lives in one Authority presents 
themselves in another Authority for 
the use of their services. 

A 0 2 1 

03-Jun-21 Children's 
Services  Schools 

Bowlee Park 
Primary  School 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

S 0 4 4 

28-May-21 Children's 
Services  Schools 

Ashfield Valley 
Primary School 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

S 0 3 3 

20-May-21 Neighbourhoods Places 
Climate 
Emergency 

Provide input and challenge to 
initiatives arising from the focus on 
the Climate Emergency agenda and 
provide independent assurance on 
the adequacy of processes and 
controls where appropriate. 

S 0 3 3 

P
age 13



Page 1 of 3 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 

 

Date of Meeting 27 September 2021 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Resources 

Report Author Louise Steel 

 
Public/Private 
Document Public 

 

Counter Fraud Team Quarter One Report 2020/21 
 

Executive Summary 

1.1 This report summarises the work of the Counter Fraud Team during the first 
quarter of 2021/22. 

1.2 The Counter Fraud Team have received 170 referrals during the period and 
have achieved £87,161 in overpayments and savings. 

1.3 Covid-19 continues to account for a significant amount of the Counter Fraud 
Team’s time and resource with over 1380 businesses being reviewed. 

1.4 90 allegations of COVID-19 business grant fraud are under investigation. 
1.5 60 allegations relating to Test & Trace were also investigated. 
1.6 In addition to this, The Counter Fraud Team have carried out reviews relating 

to the 2018/19 NFI Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support and have found 
£20,000 in overpayments, with 2 remaining as outstanding. 
These checks are carried out bi-annually. 

1.7 The impact of the pandemic had meant that interviews under caution were 
suspended on health & safety grounds and have recommenced during quarter 
two. 

Recommendation 

2. That the report be reviewed and noted. 
Reason for Recommendation 

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee to scrutinise 
Counter Fraud coverage during the first quarter of 2021/22. 

Key Points for Consideration 

4. Performance 
4.1 A total of 170 fraud referrals were received in the first quarter of this 

financial year, compared to 175 from the same period in 2020/21.  

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 3 

The main sources of these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI), the Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information and 
RBC employees. 
A significant number of these do not progress to formal investigation by the 
team as they are either passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent 
malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough information to progress 
the matter. 

4.2 The Counter Fraud Team achieved £87,161 in overpayments and savings 
throughout quarter one, compared to £2,212 the previous year.  
(N.B. the onset of the Pandemic during quarter one last year meant that the 
Counter Fraud Team supported the distribution of the Small Business and 
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grants). 

5 Covid-19 Fraud 
5.1 Through-out the first quarter of 2021/22, the Counter Fraud Team have 

been conducting business and bank fraud pre-payment checks for 
businesses that applied for a business restart grant.  
The checks have included using a tool called Spotlight and a tool provided 
by the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to check the validity of bank details 
provided.  
Those businesses deemed to be of higher risk were visited or asked for 
additional information by The Counter Fraud Team.  
The Counter Fraud Team have checked over 1380 businesses. 

5.2 The Counter Fraud Team have also continued to deal with fraud work 
related to COVID-19, including allegations of fraud arising from the 
Pandemic.  
90 allegations of COVID-19 business grant fraud have been received, all of 
which are being investigated. 

5.3 The Counter Fraud Team have started to receive allegations of Test and 
Trace Support Payment Fraud and are currently investigating over 60 
allegations. 

6 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
6.1 The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 

have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.   
The Team have received the 2020 NFI Single Person Discount, Council 
Tax matches and are waiting for a further data match to take place, before 
checking any of the matches. 

6.2 The NFI Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support work from 2018/2019 
has been completed.  
The high risk matches have been checked and we currently have 2 open 
investigations.  
To date, the Counter Fraud Team have found over £20,000 in 
overpayments from these NFI matches.   

6.3 The Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support matches for 20/21 have been 
received and checks on the various reports have commenced. 

Page 15



Page 3 of 3 

6.4 NFI have also produced three reports in respect to the COVID-19 Business 
Grants: The Discretionary Grants, Small Business Grants and Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Grants.  
The Counter Fraud Team are currently checking the data matches. 

7 Partnership Enforcement Team (PET) 
7.1 The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 

provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.   
Replies have been made to 106 Data Protection Requests from April 2021 
to June 2021, not including the work that is completed in the PET. 

7.2 Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.   
A combination of intelligence, skills and powers from the different 
enforcement agencies are used to prevent and detect fraud within the 
Borough.  
Currently the following cross-agency teams attend the weekly meeting: 
GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – 
Children’s Services; Community Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; 
Fraud; Public Protection; Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – 
Enforcement, Fire Service officials. 

7.3 The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 30 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders.   

7.4 The Counter Fraud Team continue to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.   

Costs and Budget Summary 

13 Not applicable. 
Risk and Policy Implications 

14 The work of the Counter Fraud Team helps protect the assets and interest 
of both the authority and people of Rochdale through ensuring that relevant 
policies are up to date, and followed, and by also looking to recoup any 
payments made through inappropriate means. 

Consultation 

15 The recommendations and actions arising from the work of the Counter 
Fraud Team are agreed followed through to an appropriate conclusion. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
None N/A 
  

For Further Information Contact: Louise Steel 
01706 926083 
louise.steel@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 16

mailto:louise.steel@rochdale.gov.uk


 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 27 September 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Martin Nixon 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2021/22 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 

during Quarter 1 of the 2021/22 year. 
 
Reviews of the Corporate risk registers managed by both the Council and 
the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
have been completed. There are no Red risks to report within either the 
RBC Corporate risk register or the risk registers of individual RBC Services. 
 
The Insurance team achieved a claims cost mitigation result of £352,959.78 for 
the claims closed in the quarter. Renewals of Rochdale Council’s programme 
of insurance policies were agreed effective from 1st June 2021. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of 

assurance provided through the management of risk and insurance services. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 

with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2021/22 year for all 
Council Services. 
 
 
 
 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



4.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Risk Register 
 
The Leadership Team proactively manage risks listed under the Corporate 
risk register. The Corporate risk register can be viewed under Appendix 1. 
 
Following reviews completed in August, risk owners have maintained 
unchanged risk scores for all Corporate risks. Risk scores under CRR0004 
(Risk of failure of the Council to maintain financial resilience) and CRR0008 
(Safeguarding risk to children due to act or omission by the Council) had 
increased during 2020 to reflect the impact of the Covid pandemic. Scores 
for both returned to pre-pandemic levels due to the setting of a balanced 
budget for 2021/22 and reassurance that the level of financial 
reserves/balances are appropriate, and the easing of UK lockdown 
restrictions allowing social care working practices to return to some 
normality. 
 
 
Service Risk Management 
 
Children’s Services Risk Update 
The Children’s Services directorate manage a range of high impact 
operational and financial risks due to the nature of the social care / 
educational services provided. 
 
Highest scoring Children’s Service risks - 

Risk Ref Risk Description Residual 
Score 

CSDR006 
Failure to manage within budget impacts the 
financial position of the Service and its ability to 
provide services 

 
12 

CSCR001 
Retain a workforce able to successfully deliver a 
quality Children’s Social Care service. 

 
12 

CSCR002 
Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service 
continues to increases, leading to failure to 
manage within budget 

 
12 

CSCR003 

Performance/ practice is not of consistent quality 
which compromises the safety and outcomes for 
children damaging the reputation of Rochdale 
Council. 

 
15 

EHSR004 
 
Insufficient school places. 

 
12 

 
Updates on the highest scoring Children’s Services risks are set out under 
Appendix 2, including specifics regarding the level of risk, progress on 
mitigation actions and comment on future prospects for the risk level to 
reduce. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adult Care Risk Update 
The Adult Care directorate continue to operate in an environment of 
increasing demand for social care services and the rising cost of placement 
packages. 
 
Highest scoring Adult Care risks - 

Risk Ref Risk Description Residual 
Score 

ASR0004 
Provider failure in terms of capacity, quality and 
business continuity. 

 
12 

ASR0010 
Failure to manage within budget impacts the 
financial position of the authority and ability to 
provide services. 

 
12 

 
Updates on the above risks are set out under Appendix 3, including specifics 
regarding factors causing the high level of risk, progress on mitigation 
actions and comment on future prospects for the risk level to reduce. 
 
 
Integrated Health and Social Care Risk Management 
The Corporate Risk and Assurance Framework report of 31 August 2021 
submitted to Leadership Team by the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) included commentary on 4 risks 
having residual scores of 16 or more. 
 
Red Risks under the CCG Assurance Framework – 

Strategic 
Objective 

Risk Details Residual 
Score 

Prevention 
& Access 
S02-004 

Risk: Covid-19 outbreak. 
Controls: Revised Outbreak Plan developed and 
the Public Health Directorate plan for 2021/22 
focuses on longer-term impact. 

 
16 

Prevention 
& Access 
S02-007 

Risk: Changes in Covid-19 prevention measures 
leading to community outbreak. 
Controls: Developing an approach for the 
borough to maintain safety and business 
continuity as restrictions are lifted. 

 
 

16 

In Hospital 
- Planned 
S04-010 

Risk: System impact of increased waiting times 
for treatments as a result of delays caused by the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 
Controls: Initiatives underway through the LCO 
Planned Care Programme, the GM Elective 
Reform Recovery and Restoration Operations 
Group, and the NES Waiting List Recovery and 
Restorations Group. 

 
 
 

16 

In Hospital 
– Urgent 

Care 
S06-007 

Risk: Escalating waiting times for autism 
assessment (children aged over 5 years). 
Controls: Pennine Care to challenge infection 
control requirements which impact upon provider 
ability to undertake autism assessments. 

 
 

16 

Page 19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. 
 
 
 
 
 
7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The summaries provided in the table above confirm that the highest 
Residual risk scores as at August were associated with the direct health 
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic, or the indirect impacts to other non-
Covid areas of health care. There are extensive planning and recovery 
activities underway in the CCG and LCO to mitigate these risks. The 
Council’s Public Health directorate have a shared responsibility for the 
‘Prevention & Access’ strategic objective, including influence over Covid-19 
Outbreak plans and the implementation of local prevention measures, as 
part of the integrated service provision. 
 
 
Risk Management Results 
 
There are currently no Red risks to report within either the Corporate risk 
register or the risk registers of individual RBC Services. 
 
 
Insurance Team 
 
Performance 
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from April 2021 to 
June 2021 is set out below. 
 
The team received a total of 97 new claims notifications during quarter 3. 
This total can be divided between insurance classes – Highways (44), Motor 
(22), Other Public Liability (24), Employer’s Liability (5), Others (2). This 
figure is an increase in comparison to the 79 claims received during Q1 
2020/21. 
 
A total of 65 claims were closed by the team during quarter 1. This figure 
can be divided between the insurance classes - Highways (34), Motor (12), 
Other Public Liability (15), Employer’s Liability (4). Please note Closed 
claims will largely not be the same incidents as the newly notified claims 
referred to above. The claims handling process can run over a period of 
months or years, and therefore the team are working on a combination of 
new and existing cases. 
 
Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2021/22 Q1 
The claims cost mitigation figures displayed in the table below are calculated 
by subtracting the final settled amounts for closed claims against the highest 
reserve amounts for the same losses during the handling of the claims. 
These statistics are a useful measure of the level of challenge put forward 
by the Insurance Team during their investigations, liaison with Council 
Services, and joint work with solicitors to defend against legal proceedings. 
 
 
 

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation 

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.3 

 

 

 

 

 

8. 

April 31 £161,286.53 

May 23 £146,387.25 

June 11 £45,286.00 

Total 65 £352,959.78 

 
The table shows that the Insurance Team achieved a total cost mitigation of 
£352,959.78 on settled claims costs during Q1. This figure includes a saving 
of just under £30,000 on a Highway claim whereby the claimant was 
allegedly injured due to a defective paving slab. Hospital records were 
obtained and scrutinised due to concerns that the incident had not caused 
the alleged injuries. The records revealed that the injury took place on a date 
different to allegations in the letter of claim, and also showed the claimant to 
be intoxicated. The claim was denied. 
 
June 2021 Insurance Renewals 
The Insurance team completed renewal negotiations for Rochdale Council’s 
programme of insurance policies effective from 1st June 2021. At the outset 
of the process the Senior Risk and Insurance Officer collated Council asset 
values, information regarding services provided and relevant risk 
management details to be notified to our insurers. 
 
Renewal was agreed at increased premium rates caused by rising numbers 
of catastrophe losses across the UK public sector, and not caused by any 
deterioration in Rochdale’s own claims experience. Mild Winter weather 
conditions in 2019 and 2020 have contributed to a stable claims trend in 
recent years. 
 
Priorities for the Next Quarter 
 
 Risk Management Group meetings to be arranged with Risk Champions 

across the Council to coordinate full reviews of Service risk registers. 
 Launch of updated risk review process under the Pentana Risk software 

to allow improved utilisation of the system’s reporting features. 
 Actuarial review of insurance funds to be completed by appointed 

insurance broker in advance of 2022/23 budget setting. 
 
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
9. Not applicable. 

 
 
 
 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 

Page 21



10. If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

  
 

Consultation 
 
11. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 

agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
 

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 22



  

 
 

2 September 2021 
  

 

 
     

   

 
Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register 

    

        
 
 
  

 

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational) 

 

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

Asif Ibrahim Asif Ibrahim Active Inherent 4 4 16 
 

Residual 3 3 9 
 

1 Nov 21 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.) 

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded 

John Rooney Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed Asif Ibrahim Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues    

Asif Ibrahim Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit    Asif Ibrahim Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed Asif Ibrahim Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed 

Asif Ibrahim Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Michael Garraway Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 
 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee  Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 
 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded 

John Rooney Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             

 

P
age 23



CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 
the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational) 

 

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20 
 

Residual 4 3 12 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience 

Judith Jones Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed annually, communicated and understood     Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes    

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers 

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises    

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
annually    

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly by services 

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1  Nov 21 

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

              
              
CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management leading to failure of the Council to maintain financial resilience (Strategic, Operational)  

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

Julie Murphy Julie Murphy Active Inherent 4 4 16 
 

Residual 3 2 6 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy reflects Council’s priorities.    Julie Murphy Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment    Julie Murphy Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges and mitigates risks 

Julie Murphy Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

*    CRR4011 Balances are sufficient to support the Council to remain a going concern Julie Murphy Control – In Place  29 Aug 19 1 Nov 21 

P
age 24



CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational) 

 

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

 Neil Thornton Active Inherent 4 3 12 
 

Residual 4 2 8 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood    Michael Garraway Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning    

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to    Rosemary Barker Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed    Rosemary Barker Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee    

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed    

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 
 

             

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)  

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12 
 

Residual 4 2 8 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of Combined Authority WLT (Meeting of GM 
Chief Executives)    

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place  14 Jul 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority and 
AGMA with other Council Leaders and GM Mayor    

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place  14 Jul 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on the GM Corporate Issues and 
Reform, the GM Economy Business Growth and Skills, and the GM Housing Planning and 
Environment Scrutiny Panels 

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place  14 Jul 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with key issues for the 
Borough, particularly transport, economic development, spatial framework and 
environmental issues.    

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place  14 Jul 15 1 Nov 21 

 
 
 
 
 

             

P
age 25



 
CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)  

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16 
 

Residual 4 3 12 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums. 

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks     

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early 
identification and intervention on community tensions and develop positive community 
cohesion and diversionary activities to mitigate risks of escalation in tension. The CMG to 
inform and take direction from RBC and Partners command structure. 

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

              
CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)  

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

 Sharon Hubber Active Inherent 5 4 20 
 

Residual 5 3 15 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge    Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded    Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff    Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools 

Sharon Hubber Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections    Steve Kay Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

P
age 26



 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched    Steve Kay Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

              
CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)  

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

 Claire Richardson Active Inherent 5 4 20 
 

Residual 5 3 15 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge    Claire Richardson Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge     Claire Richardson Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service    

Steven Blezard Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits    Steven Blezard Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)    Tracey Harrison Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Tracey Harrison Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Tracey Harrison Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             

P
age 27



CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)  

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status    Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date 

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16 
 

Residual 3 3 9 
 

1 Nov 2021 

Controls Control Owner Status  Adoption Date Review Date 

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated    Beverley Hirst Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee    

Mark Robinson Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently    Mark Robinson Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated    Julie Murphy Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news    Susan Ayres Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making    Shaun Knowles Control - In Place  23 Jun 15 1 Nov 21 

              
              

P
age 28



  Appendix 2: Children’s High-Scoring Risks     

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score 

CSDR006 Children’s Services 
(Directorate) 

Failure to manage within budget impacts the financial position of the 
Service and its ability to provide services Sharon Hubber 4 3 12 

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  The number of cared for children and children subject to child protection planning is rising sharply in line with need in the borough. 
What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  A 5 year financial model has been established, additional funding has been invested by the LA for the 
pressures facing the service. The additional investment tapers over the 5 years in line with the innovations imbedding and benefits of the innovations being realised. Due to the Strategy 
for 20/21 being fully funded, there is, as expected at this point, no overspend projected.  This was the assumption prior to Covid-19 and the impact of this pandemic is not yet fully 
understood but to date the financial position of the Directorate is stable. 

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The Senior Leadership Team regularly considers budget pressures collectively and in their separate management 
meetings. There are bi monthly meetings with the Chief Executive, the S151 Officer and Director of Resources which includes key performance indicators to ensure the service stay on 
track, as well as regular meetings with the Leader and Portfolio Holder. In the context of Covid-19 it would not be prudent to reduce the risk score further at this stage. 
 
 

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score 

CSCR001 Children’s Social Care Retain a workforce able to successfully deliver a quality Children’s 
Social Care service. Julia Hassall 4 3 12 

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?   Recruitment continues to be a priority area; whilst the turnover rate has stabilised as a result of the Covid pandemic we continue to 
experience difficulties in attracting good calibre applicants for posts.  

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A monthly Recruitment and Retention Group continues to be chaired by the Head of Service for Practice 
Improvement and Performance.  An action plan and a strategy to ensure Rochdale is the employer of choice, with revised approaches to advertising vacancies which will attract more 
attention.  This includes increased financial investment in the service to support a reduction in social work caseloads and an increase in student placements.    Rochdale is a pilot 
authority for implementing NAAS (the National Assessment and Accreditation System) for social workers / social work supervisors and this has now been reintroduced following the 
Covid pandemic. 

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? If the activity described above is successful in attracting more applicants to the service it is anticipated that the risk score 
could reduce. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 29



Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score 

CSCR002 Children’s Services Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service continues to increases, 
leading to failure to manage within budget Julia Hassall 4 3 12 

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?   The growing child population in borough and growing demand is causing increased budget pressures in children’s social care and in the 
additional needs service (SEND). 

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A five year sustainability strategy has been developed by reviewing and mapping levels of need and 
implications; reviewing the research and evidence base of what works; reviewing all children in external placements and working up a detailed investment strategy, which has now been 
agreed. Rochdale has been part of a Greater Manchester approach to implementing innovation programmes that have been successful elsewhere in the country. Progress is being made 
in Rochdale to develop these approaches, but will take time to deliver impact. We have implemented No Wrong Door, part of the national DfE strengthening families programme. During 
2020/21 and into 2022 we have seen a continued reduction in external placements by 9 residential; 14 independent fostering and 4 semi-independent living placements – from the 
previous year end. Whilst reductions in the number of external residential placements have continued (a small number of new placements are extremely costly, and so the picture is 
more complex than just counting numbers. One of the areas we cannot control is the inward migration; see below. The Family Service Model (FSM) and approach has been developed to 
manage demand through co-ordinated multi-agency early help.  The FSM has been developed as part of the transformation programme and predicted deflections and mainstreaming 
have not been realised to date. Additional resource has been allocated in line with demand in Children’s Social Care. 

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The sustainability strategy will over time support greater likelihood of managing demand within the designated budget. 
What the service is unable to predict is those demands emerging from children new to the authority. What is not known about these children is what level of social care needs they may 
present moving forward. The risk score cannot be reduced at this time until we have a better understanding of the impact of Covid-19, since the incoming work into children’s social care 
has in general increased in complexity. 

 

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score 

CSCR003 Children’s Social Care 
Performance/ practice is not of consistent quality which compromises 
the safety and outcomes for children which lead to death or serious 
injury of a child damaging the reputation of Rochdale Council. 

Julia Hassall 5 3 15 

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  Poor performance of the service not sufficiently addressing concern that is considered to leave a child in a situation which leads to harm 
for that child is a reputational risk for the Council. This links directly to workforce stability as the quality of practice is impacted by the quality and consistency of social work intervention; 
also with higher caseloads currently, this could impact adversely on the quality of work with children and families. 

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  The revised Performance Management and Quality Assurance Framework was updated in 2020 to ensure 
that the service has a detailed understanding of the quality of practice.  Whilst we are seeing improvements there is more to do to ensure that practice is consistent.  This is reflected in 
Children’s Improvement Plan. In addition we are reviewing our approach to recruitment and retention which will enhance and improve workforce stability.  There has been a whole 
system change to culture and practice with a strong emphasis on relational practice which considers what life is like for a child.   The service has continued to invest in strengthening 
relational practice to improve quality of service delivery. Direct advice and expectations of close monitoring in place, more regular team meetings held virtually and no relaxation in 
expectations in the audit and moderation of case files. Increase in themed audits to provide assurance across a range of practice areas. 

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future?  The controls to systematically support consistent practice have improved however the residual risk score must continue 
to recognise the need to remain continuously alert to the potential impact of work with children and families which is not of the correct standard. The quality of practice is subject to 
continuous review through service wide performance clinics. 
 
 

P
age 30



 
 

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score 

EHSR004 Early Help & Schools Insufficient school places. Debra Kay 4 3 12 

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score? Increasing numbers of children entering secondary school means that current school capacity will possibly be exceeded.   There is still 
in-year movement which continues to place pressure on the sufficiency of school places.  The Council is dependent on the DfE funding and one new secondary school has opened in 2021 
on a temporary site and a second is planned for 2022. 

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  Extra capacity was secured in current schools for 2020 with agreement gained from most secondary schools 
to take additional pupils as needed, all schools have again been approached for September 2021 with those having capacity agreeing to do the same should it be necessary.  Early 
opening (September 2021) for Edgar Wood Academy on a temporary site has been agreed and further contingency plans have been discussed with the DfE.  The Council has clearly 
explained the inability to create sufficient capacity for future years and is working with the DfE to progress plans for the secondary free school in Pennines (Star Academy) to open in 
September 2023. 

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? Until the Local Authority has firm confirmation of build and opening dates for the two new free schools, the high risk score 
cannot be reduced.

P
age 31



  Appendix 3: Adult Care High-Scoring Risks     

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score 

ASR0004 Adult Services 
 
Provider failure in terms of capacity, quality and business continuity.      
          

Tracey Harrison 4 3 12 

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  High numbers of vacancies in the care sector as a result of the pandemic – estimated at 18% vacancies, and unlikely to recovery in the 
short to medium term, and therefore risk of providers withdrawing from market is high. Robust contingency plans are in place to mitigate the risk. A likelihood score of 51- 75% for 
provider failure is thought reasonable in the current climate.  

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  Key controls include – Contingency plan in place across Northwest ADASS, working closely as part of the GM 
Market Fragility Group, local contingency plan now in place and work on an accommodation strategy is well underway to understand current and future needs. We have a robust 
escalation policy and procedure in place, and we engage with the care providers on a weekly basis to understand current vacancy levels, challenges and to discuss possible solutions. 
Significant finance has been made available through government grants, to support with expenses and sustainability through this period. Escalation meetings are in place when concerns 
are raised about a particular provider’s sustainability. Support networks are set around the care home sector in particular, this encompasses: grants, regular forums and communication, 
and an escalation process re sustainability concerns. 

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? Not in short to medium term, and will be continually monitored. The risk of provider failure still remains with the 
pandemic, the unsettled financial climate and many changes happening within the providers causing investors and individual owners to be unsettled.  

 

 

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score 

ASR0010 Adult Services  Failure to manage within budget impacts the financial position of the 
authority and ability to provide services.         Steven Blezard 3 4 12 

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  The priority given to meeting the health and wellbeing needs of citizens (and so legally comply with the Council’s statutory duties) 
means that Adult’s ability to manage budgets within limits is often not fully within our control. There has been a steady increase in high cost packages in recent years, with the cost of the 
20 most expensive placements increasing from £2.5m per annum in 2015 to £4m per annum in 2021. The overall number of citizens presenting with social care needs has also increased, 
without a corresponding increase in the number of social workers to manage the increased workloads, further amplified by difficulties in staff recruitment and retention. The impact of 
the Covid pandemic has led to a reduction in residential care placements, although the number of placements is expected to return to normal levels in the near future. This has been 
offset by a significant increase in home care placements. The service is experiencing increasing pressures from complex CSC placements transitioning into the ASC service, and further 
resource is required to allow the service to plan these transitions early (ideally at age 14). There are temporary Covid funding arrangements in place such as funding towards hospital 
discharges and grants supporting the provider market which should allow break-even in 2021/22, however ongoing pressures will remain once the temporary support has ended. 

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  Spend and forecast spend is reviewed monthly, a thorough review of care costs is undertaken, and steps are 
taken to reduce costs whenever legally possible. Finance is a high priority for the Service alongside collection of income through care contributions. Monthly Finance Board meeting have 
been in place for many years, and finance staff are involved in a wide variety of meetings on a weekly/ monthly basis. The service has introduced the use of care cubed software for 
managing non-standard-complex placements. This allows challenge to the cost of new placements or requests for fee increases from existing placements, and weekly meetings are held 
between the Service and Finance colleagues to review placements in this way. 

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? No reduction is anticipated in the foreseeable future but a medium term financial plan will help greatly if agreed. The risk 
in the current year is lower due to the benefits provided by the short term Covid funding arrangements, however this support is expected to have ended by the end of this financial year.

P
age 32



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 27 September 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate  
Report Author Monitoring Officer 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Audit and Governance Work Programme 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. 
 
1.1 
 
 
1.2 

The Council’s Constitution is required to be reviewed annually. 
 
The Council has established a Democratic Structures and Constitutional 
Working Party to consider the democratic functions of the Council. 
 
The Working Party have proposed a wholesale review is undertaken via that 
forum. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. 
 
 
2.1 

 
That the review of the Constitution is undertaken via the Democratic 
Structures and Constitutional Working Party. 
 
That the Chair and Vice Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 
attend futures meetings of the Democratic Structures and Constitutional 
Working Party where the review of the Constitution is considered. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
 
3.1 

The Audit and Governance Committee is the body with responsibility for the 
constitution.  A root and branch review of the Constitution will likely overload 
the work programme for the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
Any recommendations from the Working Party would require consideration 
by the Audit and Governance Committee prior to submission to Council. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 

The Council’s current Constitution stems from the Modular Constitution 
developed to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2000, 
which saw the introduction of new executive and scrutiny arrangements for 

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 

local authorities. While the Constitution has been amended over the years, 
its overall structure and key features have remained largely the same. 
 
The Constitution must contain: 

 the standing orders/procedure rules; 
 the members' code of conduct; 
 such information as the Secretary of State may direct; 
 such other information (if any) as the authority considers 

appropriate. 
 

A Constitution Direction was issued by the Secretary of State in December 
2000 that required around 80 matters to be included within constitutions, 
including members' allowances schemes, details of procedures for 
meetings, details of joint arrangements with other local authorities and a 
description of the rights of inhabitants of the borough. 
 
Constitutions must be available for inspection at all reasonable hours by 
members of the public and supplied to anyone who asks for a copy on 
payment of a reasonable fee. 
 
The Council’s Constitution currently comprises seven parts, many divided 
into a number of sections, with various schedules throughout those parts 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
That the Audit and Governance Committee establish a Sub-Committee to 
undertake a root and branch review of the Constitution. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. There are no financial implications at this stage. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
A local authority is under a duty to prepare and keep up to date its 
constitution under s.9P Local Government Act 2000 as amended. 

6. 

 
Consultation 

 
7. The Democratic Structures and Constitution Working Party considered the 

matter at their meeting held on 20 September 2021. 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8. Report to the Democratic 

Structures and Constitutional 
Working Party 

Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street 

 

 

Page 36



For Further Information Contact: Michael Garraway (Committees and 
Constitutional Services Manager) 
Michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk 
 

Page 37

mailto:Michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Internal Audit Quarter One Report 2021/22
	8 Counter Fraud Team Quarter One Report 2020/21
	9 Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2021/22
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2021/22
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2021/22
	Append. 3 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2021/22
	Append. 4 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2021/22

	10 Audit and Governance work programme

